
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

AGENDA  
LICENSING PANEL 

 

 
Date: Friday, 2 December 2016 
  
Time: 1.00 pm 
  
Venue: Collingwood Room - Civic Offices 

 
 
Members:  
Councillor T M Cartwright, MBE (Chairman) 

 
Councillors M J Ford, JP 

Mrs C Heneghan 

 

 
 



 
 

 

1. Licensing Act 2003 - Application for Premises Licence - Oasis Convenience 
Store, 152A West Street, Fareham PO16 0EH (Pages 3 - 44) 

 To consider a report by the Licensing Officer regarding an application for premises 
licence for the Oasis Convenience Store, 152A West Street, Fareham PO16 0EL. 
 

P GRIMWOOD 
Chief Executive Officer 
 
www.fareham.gov.uk  
24 November 2016 

 
 
 

For further information please contact: 
Democratic Services, Civic Offices, Fareham, PO16 7AZ 

Tel:01329 236100 
democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/
tel:01329
mailto:democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk


  


 

Report to 
Licensing Panel 

 
 
 
Date:  02 December 2016  
 
 
Report of: Licensing Officer   
 
 
Subject: LICENSING ACT 2003 – APPLICATION FOR NEW PREMISES 

LICENCE: OASIS CONVENIENCE STORE, 152A WEST STREET, 
FAREHAM PO16 0EH 

 

SUMMARY 

This report advises Members of the Panel of the relevant representation received from 
a member of the Public regarding a Premises Application in respect of Oasis 
Convenience Store, 152A West Street, Fareham, PO16 0EH. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Panel decides whether the representations are relevant to the new 
application, and if it is decided that the representations are relevant, the Panel 
determines the application having regard to the provisions of the Licencing Act 2003 
and associated regulations, the Council’s Licensing Policy and the representation 
received.  

 



  

BACKGROUND 
 
1. The Licensing Act 2003 specifically restricts the grounds on which the Council, 

as Licensing Authority (LA), may refuse an application for a New Premises 
Licence, or impose conditions.  Where relevant representations are made, the 
LA may refuse on the grounds that the licensing objectives are not met or the 
operating schedule is inadequate.  Equally, conditions may be imposed where 
appropriate.  The LA may also refuse an application in part and thereby only 
permit some of the licensable activities sought.  
 

2. The decision making committee, in considering an application, must have 
regard to the adopted Statement of Licensing Policy and any relevant 
representations made. 
 

3. An applicant applying for a new premises licence, whose application has been 
refused, or who is aggrieved by conditions imposed, may appeal against the 
decision to the Magistrates' Court.  
 

4. In considering this application the Panel will sit in a quasi-judicial capacity and is 
thus obliged to consider applications in accordance with both the Licensing Act 
2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005, and amending secondary legislation and the 
rules of natural justice.  The practical effect of this is that the Panel must make 
its decision based on evidence submitted in accordance with the legislation and 
give adequate reasons for reaching its decision.  The Panel must also have 
regard to:- 
 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
 
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places a Council under a duty to 
exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise 
of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, 
crime and disorder in its area.  
 
Human Rights Act 1998 
 
The Act requires UK legislation in a manner consistent with the European 
Convention on Human Rights.  It is unlawful for the Council to act in a way that 
is incompatible with the rights protected by the Act.  Any action undertaken by 
the Council that could have an effect upon other persons' Human Rights must 
be no more onerous than is necessary in a democratic society.  The matter set 
out in this report must be considered in light of the above obligations.  

 
PROCEDURE FOR THE HEARING OF THE APPLICATION 
 
5. The standard procedure for the hearing of this licensing application can be seen 

as Appendix A. 



  

THE APPLICATION  
 

6. This application is in respect of:- 
  

Oasis Convenience Store, 152A West Street, Fareham, PO16 0EH 
 
The application is for a new Premises Licence. 
 

 The applicant is: Mr Mehulkumar Shukal, Flat, Netherend Stores, Netherend, 
Woolaston, Lydney, GL15 6NN.  The application was submitted on 13th October 
2016. 
 
The licence is for the sale of alcohol Monday to Sunday between 08:00 and 
23:00.  These are also the opening hours. 
 
A copy of the application can be seen as Appendix B.  The Premises Plan can 
be seen as Appendix C.   
 

7. These premises previously held a licence under the same business name, from 
03-02-2006 until 06-09-2016 when it was revoked. 

 
8. This is a new premises licence application submitted by a new applicant. 
 
RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS  

 
9. Responsible Authorities 

 
In respect of this new premises application we received representations from 
responsible authorities as follows: 
 
Child Protection Services   No representation 
Hampshire Fire and Rescue No representation  
FBC Health and Safety  No representation 
FBC Pollution   No representation  
FBC Planning   No representation  
Police     No representation  
Trading Standards   Representation received  
Hampshire Public Health  No representation  
 
The Trading Standards representation can be seen as Appendix D to this 
report. 
 
The applicant's response to the Trading Standards representation can be seen 
as Appendix D1. 
 

10. The Police also requested the applicant apply conditions to the licence.  These 
were very similar to the Trading Standards conditions so were combined and 
sent to both authorities for agreement.  The Police confirmed they were happy 
with the conditions.  No response was received by Trading Standards.  These 
conditions can be seen as Appendix E. 
 



  

OTHER PERSONS REPRESENTATIONS 
 

11. A representation was received from an ‘other person’.  This representation can 
be seen as Appendix F. 

 
12. A map showing the premises and the location of “Other Persons” properties can 

be seen as Appendix G. 
 

CONCLUSION 
 

13. Any decision made by the Panel must be in accordance with the four licensing 
objectives, the Council's licensing policy and the Section 182 guidance issued 
by the Secretary of State.  
 

14. The Panel Members are asked to determine whether the representations made 
are relevant and if so the Panel Members are asked to review the information in 
this report and any additional evidence presented to them at the Hearing when 
determining the application.  
 

Background papers:  
 
None.  
 
Enquiries: For further information please contact Helen Spires, ext 4411. 
 

Licensing, Fareham Borough Council, Civic Offices, Civic Way, Fareham, PO16 7AZ           

www.fareham.gov.uk 

 

Hearings procedure as detailed at      APPENDIX A 
New Premises Application        APPENDIX B 
Premises Plan        APPENDIX C 
Representation from Trading Standards     APPENDIX D 
Email agreement of Conditions      APPENDIX D1 
Conditions agreed by Trading Standards, Police, Applicant   APPENDIX E 
Representation from 'Other Person'     APPENDIX F 
Map showing premises and “Other Persons” proximity   APPENDIX G 
 
 

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/
APPENDIX%20B.pdf
APPENDIX%20C.pdf
APPENDIX%20D%20Rep%20TS.doc
APPENDIX%20D1%20Agreement.msg
APPENDIX%20E%20Conditions%20agreed.docx
APPENDIX%20F.pdf
APPENDIX%20G%20smaller%20size.png


  

APPENDIX A 

 

PROCEDURE FOR HEARINGS BY THE LICENSING PANEL 

GENERAL  

1 This procedure will be followed for hearings held by the Licensing Panel to 
determine :- 

 Applications for grant, variation or review of a premises licence under the 
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 where representations have been 
made by any of the responsible authorities or other persons (as defined by 
the Licensing Act 2003); 
 

 Applications for grant or renewal of a personal licence under the provisions 
of the Licensing Act 2003 where representations have been made by any 
of the responsible authorities or other persons (as defined by the Licensing 
Act 2003); 
 

 Applications for grant or renewal of a public entertainments licence which 
is not otherwise determined by officers; 

 

 Such other licensing matter as may be referred by the Licensing Officer or 
the Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Committee from time to time. 

 

2 Hearings shall be held in public unless the Panel considers that the greater 
public interest is served by excluding the public from the meeting in 
accordance with Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.  
Circumstances when it may be appropriate to do so include where there is a 
likelihood of disclosing exempt information relating to the applicant.  

 

3 Parties to the hearing will be the applicant and any responsible authority or 
other person party making representations.  The parties to the hearing may be 
accompanied by a representative, who may present the case on their behalf. 

 

4 The Licensing Officer will not be a party to the hearing but will facilitate 
proceedings by conducting such pre-decision discussions as may be required 
and by presenting at the hearing a summary report of the application and any 
representations, together with the Officer’s comments as to how these relate 
to the relevant legislation and the appropriate licensing policy. 

 

5 Where any party intends to produce documents in support of his/her case they 
shall have been asked to do so in advance of the date of hearing.  In the event 
that a document is submitted for consideration for the first time at the hearing, 
the Chairman may adjourn the hearing to a later time or date.  It is expected 
that such adjournments will only be used in exceptional circumstances.  The 
Chairman may in any event adjourn the hearing at any time before the Panel 
reaches its decision for any other reason he/she considers appropriate. 
 

6 Each party when asked will present details of any witnesses to be called. 



 

  
 

 
 
 
 
AT A HEARING in accordance with THE LICENSING ACT 2003 

 
1 The Chairman of the Licensing Panel will outline the procedure to be 

observed and may invite any Other Persons to appoint a spokesperson2.   
 
2 The Chairman will ask the applicant whether any modification is to be made 

to the application or operating schedule submitted. 
 
3 The Licensing Officer will present a summary of the application and of any 

representations received and will comment upon their relevance to the 
Licensing Act 2003 and the Council’s licensing policy. 

 
4 The Applicant may comment on the application and on representations made 

addressing the four licensing objectives3. 
 
5 The Panel may seek clarification of points. 
  
6 The responsible authorities in turn shall make their representations relating 

to one or more of the licensing objectives3 and may be questioned by 
members of the Licensing Panel and/or applicant.    

 
7 Other Persons1 in turn shall make their representations relating to one or 

more of the licensing objectives3 and may be questioned by members of the 
Licensing Panel and/or applicant.    

 
8 The responsible authorities in turn may make a closing statement. 
 
9 The Other Persons in turn may make a closing statement. 
 
10 The Applicant may make a closing statement.    
 
11 The Licensing Panel will then withdraw from the hearing to deliberate in 

private. In the event of uncertainty on any of the evidence, all parties will be 
recalled to the hearing whilst the point in question is clarified. In the event that 
the Licensing Panel has sought advice on points of law, the legal adviser shall 
explain to all parties what advice was given. 

 
12 All parties shall be invited to return to the hearing when the Licensing Panel 

has completed its deliberations. 
 
13 The Chairman shall announce the Panel’s decision. 

________________________ 
 

1 
:  i.e. those other than responsible Authorities who have submitted representations; 

2 :  
this is most likely where there are a number of persons making representations upon the 

same point. The fact that the Panel does not hear from all Other Persons will not mean that their 
representations are not taken into account, but rather that the strength of feeling is understood 
and the case will not gain weight through repetition; 

3. the four licensing objectives are:- (i) The prevention of crime and disorder; (ii) Public Safety; 
(iii) The prevention of public nuisance; (iv) The protection of children from harm. 



































  APPENDIX D 

 

Hampshire County Council Trading Standards Service wish to make a 
representation   
  
regarding the granting of a Premises Licence issued under the Licensing Act 

2003, for :- 
 

Oasis Wine Merchants 

152 West Street 

Fareham 

Hants  

PO16 0EH 

 

We are a responsible authority.      

 

           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  APPENDIX D 

 

 

 

 

(A) REPRESENTEE DETAILS (fill in as applicable) 

 

Mr            Mrs

 Miss                     Ms    

 Other title      (for example,    

               Rev)  

  

Surname              First names 

   

 

               

          

           

Are you over 18        

 

 

 

 

 

Post Town Postcode   

 

 

Contact telephone number in working hours   

 

 

Email address   

(optional) 

 

 

  

 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 

         

1) the prevention of crime and disorder   X 

 

2) public safety       

 

3) the prevention of public nuisance    

 

4) the protection of children from harm   X

x     

Yes 

Hampshire County Council 

Trading Standards Service 

Montgomery House 

Monarch Way 

Winchester, Hants 

SO22 5PW  

01962 833658 

Steve.Lawford@hants.gov.uk 



  APPENDIX D 

 

 

We do not believe that the operating schedule and suggested conditions by 
the business are sufficient, therefore Hampshire County Council (HCC) 
Trading Standards Service would like the following conditions applied to the 
licence :- 
 

1 ) CCTV 
 
 
The premises shall have sufficient cameras located within the premises to 
cover all public areas including outside of the premises covering the entrance 
and exit.  The system will be able to cope with strobe lighting (where used) 
and all levels of illumination throughout the premises as well as outside areas. 
 
CCTV warning signs to be fitted in public places. 
 
The CCTV system must be operating at all times whilst the premises are open 
for licensable activity.  All equipment shall have a constant and accurate time 
and date generation. 
 
The recording system will be able to capture a minimum of 4 frames per 
second and all recorded footage must be securely retained for a minimum of 
28 days. 
 
Records must be made on a weekly basis and kept for inspection to show that 
the system is functioning correctly and that data is being securely retained. 
 
The DPS or premises manager must be able to demonstrate that the CCTV 
system has measures to prevent recordings being tampered with, i.e. 
password protected. 
 
There shall be sufficient members of trained staff at the premises during 
operating hours to be able to provide viewable copies immediately to police 
on request when investigating allegations of offences or criminal activity.  Any 
images recovered must be in a viewable format on either disc or VHS.  
Footage supplied in a digital format on CD or DVD will also have a copy of the 
CCTV system software enabled on the disc to allow playback. 
 
In the event of technical failure of the CCTV equipment the Premises Licence 
holder/DPS MUST report the failure to the Police Licensing Unit within 24 
hours. 
 
 
2) Refusals book 
 

A written log shall be kept of all refusals including refusals to sell alcohol. The 
Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that the refusals log is checked, signed 
and dated on a weekly basis by the store manager/manageress. 

 



  APPENDIX D 

 

The refusals log will be kept and maintained at the premises and will be 
available for inspection immediately upon request by Hampshire Constabulary 
and any responsible authority. 

The record of refusals will be retained for 12 months. 

 

3) Challenge 25 
 

There will be a Challenge 25 policy operating at the premises. Challenge 25 
means that the holder of the premises licence shall ensure that every 
individual, who visually appears to be under 25 years of age and is seeking to 
purchase or be supplied with alcohol at the premises or from the premises, 
shall produce identification proving that individual to be 18 years of age or 
older.  
 
Acceptable identification for the purposes of age verification will include a 
driving licence, passport or photographic identification bearing the “PASS” 
logo and the persons date of birth. 
 
If the person seeking alcohol is unable to produce acceptable means of 
identification, no sale or supply of alcohol will be made to or for that person.  
 
‘Challenge 25’ posters shall be displayed in prominent positions at the 
premises. 

 

4) Training/Sales of Alcohol  
 
All sales of alcohol must be made by a Personal Licence Holder only, with the 
exception of  Mr Pankaj Patel and Mr Ketan Pattni. Mr Pankaj Patel and Mr 
Ketan Pattni will not be allowed on the premises. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  APPENDIX D 

 

Signature of representee or representee’s solicitor or other duly authorised 

agent.  If signing on behalf of the representee, please state in what capacity. 
 

 

Signature……… 

 

S. Lawford 

………………………………………………………………………………………… 

 

Date…13/10/16…………………………………………………………………………

……………………………. 

 

Capacity……Trading Standards Officer 

 

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence 

associated with this representation (please read guidance note 5) 

 

 

N/A 

 

Post town Post code 

            

 









  APPENDIX E 

Page 1 of 2 

 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with operating schedule 
 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

4 The premises licence holder shall ensure that when licensable activity is taking place  and 
a Personal Licence Holder is not present at the premise, a responsible person aged over 18 
shall be present who has written authorisation from the DPS to sell alcohol.  This 
authorisation should be available for immediate inspection by the Police and other 
Responsible Authorities. This person shall be trained in licensing matters and be competent 
to deal with all licensing issues that may arise within the premises. This persons 
training shall be documented and made available to the Police and other responsible 
authorities upon request.  
 
 
5 The premises licence holder shall ensure that recordable CCTV is in place when 
licensable activity is taking place. This must be of a standard acceptable to the local Police 
Licensing department and shall operate at a minimum frame rate of six frames per 
second.  There shall be sufficient cameras to cover the customers at the till point and also 
the shop entrance. Imagery obtained from the CCTV system must be retained for a 
minimum of 28 days on a rolling basis. This must be made available on DVD disc format 
that can be viewed by the Police and must be given to them and other Responsible 
Authorities immediately upon request. There shall always be a staff member on duty that is 
able to competently operate the CCTV system and be able to immediately provide the 
footage when required by the Police or other Responsible Authorities.  All equipment shall 
have a constant and accurate time and date generation. In the event technical failure of the 
CCTV equipment, the DPS, Premises licence Holder or representative must report the 
failure to the local Police immediately. 
 
 
6 An incident/refusal log shall be kept at the premises, and made available for inspection on 
request to an authorized officer of the council of the police which will record the following; 
 
a) All crimes reported at the venue 
b) Any complaints received, any faults in the CCTV system 
c) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol, any visit by a relevant authority 
 
7 The premises licence holder shall ensure that a training package is in place in order for all 
staff involved with the sale or supply of alcohol to be sufficiently trained in licensing 
matters proportionate to their role and be aware of their responsibilities. This training shall 
include the refusal of service to drunks and age verification. Records shall be kept of this 
training, dated and signed by the staff member and trainer.  Refresher training shall be 
completed at least every 6 months again with documented records made and to be 
available for inspection to Police and other responsible authorities. 
A written record shall be retained at each bar to show the staff that have been authorised to 
sell alcohol. This shall be made available to the Police and other responsible authorities on 
request.    
 
 
8 All sales of alcohol must be made by a Personal Licence Holder only, Mr Pankaj Patel 
and Mr Ketan Pattni will not have any involvement in any operations of the business and 
will not be employed by the applicant 
 



  APPENDIX E 

Page 2 of 2 

9 All goods, including those subject to duty payments i.e. alcohol and tobacco products will 
be brought from cash and carries only an invoices will be available upon request. No 
alcoholic drinks or tobacco will be purchased by the premises from unannounced sellers 
calling at the premises. 
 
10 The premises licence holder shall ensure that all cans and bottles of lager, beer and 
cider that are on display and available for sale at the shop are no higher in strength than 
6.5% ABV.   
 
 
11 The premises licence holder shall ensure the following: That cans of lager, beer and 
cider are only sold in multi packs of 4 or more. That bottles beer, lager and cider of 0.5 litres 
or below are only sold in multi packs of 4 or more.      
 
 
12 The premises licence holder shall ensure that no item that encourages or promotes the 
taking of controlled drugs shall be sold at the premises.  
 
 
 
 
Public Safety 

No conditions apply 
 
 
The Prevention of Public Nuisance 

13 Notice displayed asking customers to leave quietly from premises also customers will be 
told in person to leave quietly and not to disturb the local neighbourhood. 
 
14 Strict policy in place to tell all staff not to serve alcohol to drunks at all. 
 
15 Appropriate signage will be displayed, in prominent position informing customers they 
are being recorded on CCTV. 
 
 
 
The Protection of Children from Harm 

16 The premises licence holder shall ensure that a system is in place to ensure that every 
individual who appears to be under 25 years of age seeking to purchase or be supplied with 
alcohol at or from the premises, shall produce acceptable means of identification and age 
confirmation. Acceptable identification shall be a passport, photo driving licence or PASS 
accredited photo ID . If the person seeking alcohol is unable to produce acceptable means 
of identification, no sale or supply of alcohol will be made to or for that person.  
 
 
 
17 The only acceptable ID will be those with photographic identification documents; 
including passport, photo-card, driving license or proof of age card bearing the PASS 
hologram. 
 
 
 






















	Agenda
	1 Licensing Act 2003 - Application for Premises Licence - Oasis Convenience Store, 152A West Street, Fareham PO16 0EH
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix D1
	Appendix E
	Appendix F
	Appendix G


